No. 57847-6-II
ASHINGTON Case #: 1031157
•

DIVISION TWO.

CELESTE RYAN,

Appellant,

v.

JEFFERY TIMMERMAN and SILVERDALE PLUMBING &

HEATING INC.,

Respondent.

PETITION FOR REVIEW

Celeste Ryan

Appellant Pro Per

435 Shadowtree Dr.

Oceanside, CA, 92058

Celeste_ryan@yahoo.com

(253)-391-8335

II.	IDENTITY OF PETITIONER
III.	ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS
IV.	FACTS OF THE CASE
V.	OBJECTIONS AND COUNTER ARGUMENTS TO APPELLATE COURT ANALYSIS
VI.	CONCLUSION AND RELIEF REQUESTED
VII.	APPENDIX WITH CITATIONS

I. INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to clear precedent established by this Court, published Decisions of the Court of Appeals, the United States Constitution, and the Fundamental Principles of Fair practice and equal treatment under the law, this case must be reviewed by the Supreme Court for what the petitioner claims to be at least Judicial error, and at most, Judicial corruption. Plaintiff will include citations in the appendix, as her word count in this petition is limited.

Plaintiff Celeste Ryan(Ryan) brought a negligence claim against Mr. Jeffery Timmerman for a car accident which occurred in 2002. Mr. Timmerman was acting under the employment of Silverdale Plumbing & Heating Inc., at the time of the accident, who were therefore vicariously liable. Ryan named both Timmerman and Silverdale as defendants in her complaint filed in November 2016. Ryan claimed permanent spinal injuries and a mild traumatic brain injury as a result of the accident. Ryan claims that the trial court manipulated the

issues and evidence to be brought before the jury in favor of the defendants through the use of pretrial motions, which violated her both State and Federally Constitutionally protected rights and has acted in contradiction to case precedent as well as statutory law. Ryan seeks review of the Appellate court decision which condoned every action of the trial court.

II. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

Celeste Ryan, the plaintiff, seeks review of the decision of the Court of Appeals identified in Part III below.

III. ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR

The following are issues presented to the court of appeals, all of which were affirmed by the appellate court, all of which are petitioned for review now by this Washington State Supreme court:

 Trial court order prohibiting contact between the parties, and The trial court order for sanctions against the plaintiff violating the plaintiffs constitutional rights.¹

¹ Appendix section 1

- 2. The trial court order granting Partial summary judgment for past medical bills in the amount of \$3,289.00, and the dismissal of plaintiffs' claims of Dysautonomia as caused by the subject accident, and The trial court order denying the exclusion of the defense expert witnesses on the basis of fraud upon the court, violating the plaintiffs constitutional rights ².
- The trial court order which capped plaintiffs' damages to damages incurred within three months post-accident violating the plaintiffs constitutional rights³.
- The trial court order which denied the plaintiffs request to subpoen the defense expert witnesses to trial violating the plaintiffs constitutional rights⁴.
- Judicial immunity, judicial discretion and Summary judgment proceedings violate constitutional rights⁵.

² Appendix section 2

³ Appendix section 3

⁴ Appendix section 4

⁵ Appendix section 5

Plaintiff contends that these orders violate her Constitutionally protected rights to a fair trial, to equal treatment under the law, to remedy for her injuries, her freedom of speech and her right to represent herself in a court of law. Plaintiff further contends that the privileges allowed to licensed attorneys violate the constitutional requirements of equal treatment under the law, and plaintiff alleges that this is discrimination based upon a class of persons (Pro Per litigants). The entire appellate court opinion reads more like a tabloid than a judicial analysis. Plaintiff claims the trial court used unnecessary delay in order to attempt to settle the case or give up her rights to remedy in some manner, for the purpose of avoiding a jury trial. Plaintiff claims that the use of precedent case law in lieu of statutory law violates litigants rights to due process. Plaintiff claims judicial immunity, discretion and the use of Summary judgment proceedings, while these practices are argued by the courts to be necessary, the use of each

practice, in conjunction with each other, and without any citizen oversight or practical remedy for violations, are unconstitutional as well as unnecessary, and only act as a grab for power by the courts.

IV. FACTS OF CASE

The following claims of fact are present and supported in plaintiffs' pre-trial motions. At six years old, the Plaintiff was struck in a car accident by Defendant Timmerman. The Plaintiff waited to pursue legal action until reaching adulthood, as allowed by statutory limitations, to fully understand the impact of her injuries.

The Plaintiff offered to settle her claim, but the defense insurer refused. This refusal invoked the legal doctrine of bad faith, which holds an insurer liable for all damages if it rejects a reasonable settlement within policy limits and a judgment exceeds those limits. The Plaintiff's father had also demanded policy limits shortly after the incident, when plaintiff was still a child.

The Plaintiff later found that the Defendants had a \$5 million commercial policy, which would be voided if the Defendants committed fraud. The Plaintiff sued for injuries, including a mild traumatic brain injury leading to a dysfunctional autonomic nervous system (dysautonomia) and cervical instability.

During discovery, the Plaintiff provided multiple imaging studies, treatment notes spanning two decades, autonomic testing results supporting her father's findings (a chiropractor), pre-accident medical records, school and work records showing her inability to be gainfully employed and agreed to a CR 35 examination with professional videotaping.

During discovery, the Plaintiff learned through interrogatory answers that the Defendants had destroyed the vehicle involved in the accident after retaining defense counsel

in 2016, violating RCW 9A.72.150 (tampering with evidence). Additionally, the defense attempted to falsify repair estimates to show the vehicle was operational, but this was exposed when the Plaintiff demanded proof of payment.

The Plaintiff offered to meet with the Defendants and their attorney to address these issues and possibly reach a settlement, suspecting the defense attorney, representing the insurance company, might be attempting to void the insurance contract by committing fraud on behalf of the defendants. The Plaintiff made no attempt to contact the Defendants directly, nor without their attorney present.

The defense attorney responded that the Plaintiff lacked settlement authority. The Plaintiff then requested proof that the Defendants were informed of her offer and had rejected it, but no such proof was provided, and under what authority the defense attorney was citing that only the insurance carrier had authority to settle, as her research proved otherwise.

The Plaintiff spent months drafting a motion to exclude the defense expert report due to clear factual inconsistencies between the expert's testimony and the videotaped examination of the Plaintiff. Meanwhile, the defense filed a motion for partial summary judgment, arguing that the Plaintiff could not prove additional past medical bills beyond the \$3,200 estimated by their experts. Plaintiff claimed about \$18,000 in past medical bills total. The defense also contended that the Plaintiff could not present evidence of causation for her dysautonomia without expert testimony from a licensed expert specifically retained for litigation.

The Plaintiff opposed summary judgment with evidence of her injuries and their permanency. The trial court, requiring licensed expert testimony, accepted the defense's report, granted the motion for summary judgment, excluded \$14,800 in additional past medical bills, and dismissed the Plaintiff's dysautonomia claims.

The trial court denied the plaintiffs motion to exclude because the expert witness testimony needed to be weighed by the jury to determine if it was credible. (while simultaneously accepting it as credible for summary judgment purposes).

Plaintiff later moved for a continuance, which was granted under the condition that plaintiff pay the defense expert fees to attend trial at a later date, to testify about the remaining issues.

After several trial continuances, pressure for a settlement over a jury trial mounted on the Plaintiff from both the defense and the trial judge. It was becoming apparent that the trial court and the defense may not allow the case to ever reach a jury. After personally witnessing this inappropriate behavior, the Plaintiff's father contacted an acquaintance related to the Defendant's family to ensure that they were in fact informed of all the facts of the case, and the way in which litigation was accompanied by possible malfeasance by their attorney. As a

result, of Mathew Ryan exercising his rights, the Plaintiff was sanctioned, and her primary medical witness was removed from the trial.

Following this, the defense reinterpreted the summary judgment to dismiss not only past medical bills and dysautonomia claims but also future medical costs, loss of employment opportunities, loss of income, and other related claims. The trial court agreed, effectively converting the partial summary judgment into essentially a full dismissal of the Plaintiff's case.

The defense also opposed their own experts testifying at trial, because they had successfully used that testimony for summary judgement, without the need to determine the credibility of it, had removed the plaintiffs expert witness because he exercised his rights, and converted the partial summary judgment into effectively full summary judgment with the help of the trial court, arguing that the defense experts

were irrelevant the whole time, due to the partial summary judgment order, which occurred prior to the court ruling that the defense experts would need to be cross examined at trial and that the plaintiff must pay for them to be there in order to grant the continuance.

At trial, the Plaintiff was heavily restricted: she couldn't name her conditions, discuss her treatment, or explain the absence of her physicians and other witnesses. She was only allowed to describe the pain she felt for three months postaccident. Nevertheless, the jury saw through these restrictions and asked the very same questions plaintiff had been arguing were in fact left for the jury to determine but was prevented from any sense of a fair trial due to the courts obvious purposeful interference.

V. OBJECTIONS AND COUNTER ARGUMENTS TO APPELLATE COURT ANALYSIS

1. Prohibition on directly contacting the defendants and order for sanctions.

The facts here are that the plaintiff made no attempts to contact the defendants directly, there is nothing in the record to conclude that the defendants had made ANY notion themselves that they did not wish to meet, nor that they had even been informed that there was an offer to meet, and circumstances in this case warranted reasonable suspicion that the defense attorney was in fact corrupt. Therefore, the trial court was without authority to impose any order on the plaintiff to begin with. The principle that a court cannot regulate the conduct of a party without there being a violation of a rule, law, or statute is rooted in the fundamental tenets of legal justice and due process. This argument hinges on the premise that judicial authority is circumscribed by the framework of established laws and that arbitrary or extra-legal actions by the judiciary undermine the rule of law. The appellate court's acknowledgment that no law or rule was broken by the plaintiff and then turn around and enforce the same standards under the guise of

general conductorial control is enforcing the rule de facto and without due process. Courts derive their authority from the Constitution, statutes, and established common law. This authority is limited to interpreting and applying these laws to the cases before them. Without a specific rule, law, or statute being violated, the court lacks a legitimate basis to regulate or sanction the conduct of a party. Judicial overreach into areas not governed by existing legal frameworks erodes the predictability and stability of the legal system. The principle of legality, which is fundamental to democratic governance, dictates that individuals can only be penalized or restrained under clear and pre-existing laws. This principle protects against arbitrary governance and ensures that individuals have the freedom to act without fear of retroactive sanctions or unforeseen judicial interventions. In this context, if no law or rule has been broken by the plaintiff, the court does not have the legal grounds to regulate their conduct, even under a general regulatory claim of authority. The appellate

court's role is to ensure that the law has been correctly applied and that due process has been observed. When an appellate court acknowledges that no law or rule was violated by the plaintiff, it effectively affirms that the lower court's intervention lacked a legal basis. Courts must refrain from regulating conduct unless it is clearly within their jurisdiction as defined by existing legal norms. Allowing courts to act without a legal violation disrupts this balance and risks the judiciary encroaching on legislative functions. A court that acts without identifying a legal violation sets a dangerous precedent, leading to unpredictability and potentially arbitrary justice.

Furthermore, Matthew Ryan was SPECIFICALLY and EXPLICITLY excluded from the order, for the exact reason that the court did not have the authority to include his action in the already unauthorized prescription of conduct regulation, which in itself means that the later sanctions order is without authority.

The authority of the insurance company to settle is irrelevant here, but for the sake of argument, this is also a factually and legally false assertion by the appellate court, and is made without reference to any case law, rule or statute that supports the idea that a 3rd party indemnity insurer is the only "party" with authority to settle. In fact, as plaintiff has argued from day one, it is well within the authority of an insured to bypass their insurance obligations to allow the insurer to settle, should there be a finding of bad faith. Bad faith can amount to either the failure to properly adjudicate a claim, and exposing the insureds to unnecessary risk or, where in the circumstances of this case present an argument for intentional bad faith due to the willful criminal acts of the defendant and their insurance appointed attorney. These acts, ignored at every instance by the courts include spoliation of evidence, tampering with evidence and violations of safety standards for commercial entities. These are

willful criminal acts, brought to the attention of the court (again) at the sanctions hearing and were of course ignored. Given these factual occurrences, it was well within reason to believe that the defendants were one, ignorant of these occurrences and their repercussions, and the two that settlement could be made between the parties without the interference or "permission" of the insurance company. The court cites Arden v. Forsberg & Umlauf, P.S., 193 Wn. App. 731, 752, 373 P.3d 320 (2016), making the defense attorneys argument for him, which is not at issue here of whether insurance companies have general settlement authority. What was argued in the correspondence between defense counsel and plaintiff, and not addressed by the appellate court here, is whether a third-party insurance company is the ONLY authority regarding settlement, not the parties to a lawsuit. Especially, when there are allegations of bad faith.

The appellate court here ignores the primary request for sanctions against the defense attorney at the time of his sanction

motion was because of the comparison between the behavior of the plaintiff, which at every turn is claimed to be within the court authority to control even when it cannot be shown to have violated any statute, law or rule, and yet, the defense who have literally committed criminal violations such as perjury, spoliation, and evidence tapering is ignored completely by the trial court and now this appellate court. The defense has never even denied the allegations made by the plaintiff. Any reasonable person would come to a different conclusion as to the facts of this case and who is the party responsible for inappropriate behavior and that is by definition an abuse of discretion by this court.

The intent behind Mathew Ryan's message to reach the Defendants directly is irrelevant because he has the right to do so. The trial court, defense, and Appellate court can only bring this issue under their authority by framing the messages as settlement-related, making Matthew a representative of the Plaintiff. However, there is no record supporting that any

settlement was offered, and therefore this court has trafficked Mathew Ryan into a new capacity; the plaintiffs representative.

The Appellate court's assertions are unfounded, reflecting a pattern where the Defendants' claims are accepted without scrutiny, while the Plaintiff faces sanctions and ridicule for similar contentions. The Plaintiff's legitimate claims of bad faith by the defense attorney were ignored, indicating bias. The court has a duty to consider all legitimate claims, and failure to do so undermines judicial impartiality.

The original order prohibiting communication, as well as the later sanctions order for "violating" the no contact order must be reversed.

2. Partial Summary Judgment and Motion to Exclude

The major points here are that 1. The plaintiff was entitled to present evidence other than sworn expert testimony to defeat summary judgment, 2. That the expert report should have been excluded under rule 702 and 3. That at the least, neither motion should have been granted under the circumstances to safeguard the right to a fully informed jury.

The Plaintiff provided extensive medical records showing her uninjured condition before the accident, diagnoses immediately after, and evidence that her conditions persisted for 16 years. She also submitted a vehicle repair estimate to demonstrate the significant forces involved and a report from a percipient expert witness linking her conditions to the accident. In contrast, the defense relied solely on a CR 35 examiner's report, which the Plaintiff moved to exclude as fraudulent.

For the court to claim that the only admissible evidence which can defeat summary judgment is expert testimony, then the courts are barring litigants without the financial resources from asserting claims of injury. Requiring that the only evidence permissible to defeat summary judgment be expert testimony, which often costs thousands of dollars, is both unfair and improper for several key reasons. This practice undermines the

principles of justice, access to the courts, and equality before the law.

The high expense of obtaining expert witnesses creates a financial barrier that disproportionately impacts low-income litigants. Justice should not be contingent upon one's financial resources; every individual deserves an equal opportunity to present their case and have it heard fairly.

The Plaintiff's records created a material fact issue, supported by the very records the defense expert used. The court's reliance on the defense expert's opinion over the Plaintiff's treating physician was an unfair judgment. The Plaintiff met all disclosure and report requirements, and her evidence raised reasonable questions of material fact.

The jury's skepticism of the defense's narrative—that the Plaintiff's injuries resolved in three months—supports the Plaintiff's position that the trial court failed to favor the nonmoving party's evidence as required. For summary judgment to be proper, there can be but one conclusion that can be drawn from the evidence. The fact that the jury was not convinced of the defense narrative, even when it was the only narrative offered proves plaintiffs' theory that her opposition to the summary judgment motions was sufficient to defeat it. The appellate courts acknowledgment that the Summary report offered may have been admissible, yet still dismisses it, also shows their failure to view evidence in the light most favorable to the non-moving party.

The appellate court mentioned Matthew Ryan's deposition but ignored its improper form and circumstances, favoring the defense and trial court. The defense initially subpoenaed Ryan as an expert witness but canceled when they deemed his fees too high. They then re-subpoenaed him as a fact witness and records custodian. Ryan appeared as a records custodian, refusing to give expert testimony, and directed the defense to the records for factual occurrences.

Next this appellate court appears to argue that chiropractors are not qualified to make neurological diagnoses. Chiropractors are highly trained specialist physicians in manual 'medicine'. Chiropractors are primary 'portal of entry' healthcare providers and do not need referral or supervision in their health care practice. Chiropractors are trained to use specialized imaging and testing just like all other physicians are trained to use and to interpret findings related to their specific field of healthcare. It is vitally necessary for chiropractors to diagnose all health conditions in order to safely create appropriate treatment plans for patients.

Plaintiffs treating physician did not meet the requirements of a retained expert but, as a treating physician, organically arrived at conclusions during treatment, exempting him from needing to provide a formal expert report.

The summary judgment motion relied solely on the defense expert report, which the Plaintiff criticized for factual

inconsistencies between the videotaped exam and the report, not for its opinions or tests. Under Rule 702, evidence must be reliable to be admissible, and it is the court's duty to act as a gatekeeper. Despite the court's claim that the Plaintiff misunderstood legal doctrine, she correctly interpreted Rule 702, especially with its 2023 revision emphasizing the admissibility of evidence.

Plaintiff argued that the defense expert's methods were unreliable and should be excluded. The court incorrectly treated this as an issue of weight and credibility, not admissibility. Plaintiff also contended that defense experts must adhere to the standards of their licenses, even if she was not a "patient." The advisory committee's revisions support the Plaintiff's arguments, which were ignored by the court. The credentials of expert witnesses are irrelevant except to hold them to higher standards. Lastly, Courts claim the need for discretion to address situations requiring deviation from regular rules and laws. However, in this case, the trial court failed to see that the fairer option was to deny both motions and let the trial proceed on all issues. The trial judge's judgment was clearly lacking, as a fair approach would have been to allow the parties to argue their cases fully at trial.

3. Motion to cap damages

The motion to cap the plaintiff's damages is an unlawful conversion of the order for partial summary judgment (PSJ), which only limited part of the plaintiff's claims, into an almost complete dismissal of their claims, violating due process. The court and defense's assertion that this was the full intent of the PSJ order from the beginning is illogical and baseless. If the PSJ was meant to cover all claims except for pain and suffering, it would effectively be a full summary judgment. This would contradict standard practice, where claims for pain and suffering could survive summary judgment based on plaintiff testimony alone, and there would never be full summary judgment orders or dismissals. The order appears designed to render the defense experts' testimony irrelevant, avoiding jury scrutiny. The court's assertion that this was proper under the summary judgment order, rather than a sanctions order, suggests that the sanctions unjustly and without cause fully diminished the plaintiff's claims. The court's refusal to acknowledge this indicates the sanctions order itself is improper.

4. Motion to issue subpoena for defense expert testimony

After the defense claimed that with the motion to cap damages being granted, they no longer needed to call their expert witnesses, the plaintiff moved for a subpoena for their trial testimony. Again, the facts of the case do not align with the conclusions drawn by the trial court or the appellate court. First, to claim that the summary judgment order had in fact made the defense experts irrelevant is unfounded. Plaintiff was ordered to

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