FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
7/10/2024 1:33 PM
BY ERIN L. LENNON
CLERK

No. 1031157

(Court of Appeals No. 57847-II)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

CELESTE RYAN,

Plaintiff/Appellant,

VS.

JEFF TIMMERMAN and SILVERDALE PLUMBING & HEATING, INC.

Defendants/Respondents.

RESPONDENT TIMMERMAN et al. ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

Sarah L. Eversole, WSBA No. 36335 WILSON SMITH COCHRAN DICKERSON 1000 Second Avenue, Suite 2050 Seattle, WA 98164 (206)623-4100 (206)623-9273 facsimile eversole@wscd.com Of Attorneys for Respondent

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

II. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE DENIED

A. Ryan Fails To Identify Any Standard of Review Under Which Her Petition Could be Accepted

RAP 13.4(b) provides the "Considerations Governing Acceptance of Review" by the Washington Supreme Court. The Rule provides:

(b) Considerations Governing Acceptance of Review. A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only: (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a published decision of the Court of Appeals; or (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

Ryan does not identify the basis under which she seeks review. Her petition lacks all indicia of a serious effort to seek Supreme Court review. Instead of identifying and setting forth an explanation satisfying any of the criteria under RAP 13.4(b), she asserts "objections and counter arguments" to the Court of Appeals analysis and opinions. Petition at 11. These arguments consist entirely of unsupported, unfounded accusations of "corruption" and violation of "legal justice and due process" without even a single legal argument or citation to the record. As such, review is not merited. RAP 13.4(b).

- B. Division II Correctly Applied Washington Precedent And Affirmed Each of the Trial Court Decisions At Issue.
 - 1. Trial Court Order Requiring Ryan and her Representatives To Refrain From Contacting Defendants And the Sanctions for Violating That Order

Ryan argues that she violated no rule, because the first order did not reference Matthew Ryan specifically, and so his conduct could not have violated the order. Petition at 13-14. Ryan also makes various incoherent arguments about insurance

companies and bad faith, which are entirely irrelevant. Petition at 15.

Division II explained that while the "RPCs do not inherently apply to nonlawyers, the trial court has discretion to make trial management decisions including preventing harassment of the parties. Importantly, the trial court acknowledged that the parties could talk to each other if they wanted to, but here, the defendants clearly did not want to be contacted. As such, the trial court was not necessarily applying RPC 4.2, but was instead ordering Ryan and Matthew to follow the parameters of the rule due to their prior actions, even though they would not normally be subject to the rule. Thus, we hold that the trial court did not abuse its discretion by ordering Ryan and her representatives to comply with in RPC 4.2 and contact the defendants only through counsel." Opinion p. 11-12.

Division II also rejected Ryan's argument that she could not be sanctioned for her or her father's conduct:

... But "separate from sanctions under the contempt statute, a trial court may 'fashion and impose appropriate sanctions under its inherent authority to control litigation.' (internal citation omitted). The court's inherent power to sanction is vested in the court to ensure it can dispose of cases in an orderly and expeditious manner. (citation omitted) A court has "inherent authority to sanction lawyers for improper conduct during the course of litigation" if it finds the conduct was in bad faith. (citation omitted). And a court may sanction a pro se litigant as it would an attorney for their litigation conduct. (citation omitted)

. .

Here, the trial court's order directed that Ryan and "her representatives shall comply with RPC 4.2 and not have any direct or indirect contact with the Defendants" and "shall direct all of her communications to the Defendants' counsel." CP at 752. After the order, Matthew tried several times to contact Silverdale Plumbing's owner through her husband and brother-in-law...The trial court found that the communications were intended to settle the case and the messages were "veiled threats." VRP (Sept. 13, 2019) at 25. It also found that the sanctions authorized by chapter

7.21 RCW did "not adequately apply under the circumstances" and therefore excluded Matthew from testifying rather than any remedial sanction. CP at 938.

Opinion at 14-15.

Division II concluded it was "not untenable to construe the prohibition against indirect contact with the defendants to include the husband and brother-in-law of Silverdale Plumbing's owner when clearly intended to reach the owner. Nor was it unreasonable to find that Matthew acted as Ryan's representative when he encouraged the opposing party to engage in settlement negotiations, find a different lawyer, and amend filings. Thus, there was substantial evidence to support the conclusion that Matthew and Ryan violated the court's prior order in bad faith. There was also substantial evidence to support the finding that chapter 7.21 RCW sanctions were insufficient.

Accordingly, Division II correctly found that the trial court did not abuse its discretion by excluding Matthew's testimony at trial as a sanction for violating the court's order prohibiting contact with the defendants, and that the trial court did not err by

declining to sanction Timmerman for filing a meritorious sanctions motion. Review is not merited. RAP 13.4(b).

2. Division II Correctly Affirmed the Trial Court's Order Granting Partial Summary Judgment

Ryan argues (with no citation to any record) that "the record" was sufficient to create a genuine issue of fact, and that the defense relied on a CR 35 report, which she alleges was "fraudulent." Petition, p. 19.

However, as set forth in Division II's opinion, during her appeal, Ryan had argued that because she produced a "summary report" by Matthew Ryan that states her dysautonomia was caused by the accident, this precluded summary judgment. Opinion p. 15. Division II noted that this report was not a sworn statement, and when deposed, Matthew Ryan had refused to provide any expert opinions because he was not licensed. Opinion p. 17-18. Division II cited to the relevant Washington case law which establishes that expert testimony is generally necessary to establish most aspects of causation in a personal injury case involving "obscure medical factors. Opinion p. 17. Division II also noted that it was not until the day before the

summary judgment hearing, after the discovery cutoff and after the deadline for submitting responsive evidence, that Ryan filed a surreply with Matthew Ryan's new sworn declaration asserting that the accident caused her condition, after having sought no continuance or reopening of discovery. Id. at 18.

Division II noted that after the trial court set aside Ryan's late materials, Ryan had no admissible evidence to support her claim because she lacked sworn expert testimony to support a causal link between the accident and her complaints. Further, the late provided "summary" from Matthew Ryan was not authenticated, nor did it explain how he was qualified to testify as to neurological symptoms. Thus, the only admissible medical expert evidence before the trial court at summary judgment was Timmerman's CR 35 report challenging both the injury and causation elements of Ryan's negligence claim. Opinion at 18. Accordingly, Division II found that the trial court did not err by concluding that Ryan had failed to make a prima facie showing of an essential element of her claim, causation, and it affirmed the trial court's dismissal of Ryan's claims related to dysautonomia and her claims for past medical bills beyond \$3,289.00, the amount she incurred in the three months after the accident. Review is not merited. RAP 13.4(b).

3. Division II Correctly Affirmed the Trial Court's Denial of Ryan's Motion to Exclude Defense Medical Experts

The CR 35(a)(1) allows a party to seek "a physical examination by a physician" when the opposing party's "physical condition . . . is in controversy," resulting in a report. Ryan argues that the trial court abused its discretion by denying her motion to exclude Timmerman's medical experts and their CR 35 report, and the Court of Appeals violated her constitutional rights by affirming this decision. She argued on appeal, and continues to argue, (again with no support) that the expert conclusions were "pre-meditated" and "fraudulent." Br. of Appellant at 44, Petition at 19-20.

Division II disagreed, explaining that "ER 702 allows the admission of expert testimony and reports if 'specialized knowledge will assist the trier of fact to understand the evidence or to determine a fact in issue." Opinion at 19. Division II cited

to controlling Washington Case law requiring that a party claiming unfair bias, "must produce sufficient evidence demonstrating bias... mere speculation is not enough." Opinion at 20 (citations omitted).

Division II found that the defense medical experts had produced a report made under oath, which explained the tests conducted and the conclusions reached. Ryan produced no evidence these experts were not qualified, using invalid theories or methods, or that their conclusions were not relevant. Opinion at 20 (internal citations omitted). Except for Matthew's untimely declaration, which the trial court declined to consider, Ryan relied entirely on her own assertions about the experts. In this petition, Ryan makes similar unfounded unqualified allegations that the experts were "unreliable." Petition at 23.

Division II found that the trial court did not abuse its discretion by concluding that Ryan was challenging the experts' credibility, not the admissibility of their testimony or reports; and the trial court did not err by denying the motion to exclude the experts. Review is not merited. RAP 13.4(b).

4. Division II Correctly Affirmed the Trial Court's Order in Favor of Defendant to Limit General Damages to Three Months After the Accident

Ryan argues now, as she argued in her appeal, that the trial court improperly weighed the evidence when it granted Defendants' motion to limit general damages to the three months after the accident. Petition at 23.

However, the trial court's ruling on partial summary judgment had effectively limited Ryan's claim for general damages to three months after the accident. And as this ruling was proper, the order limiting Ryan's claim to the three month time period was likewise proper. Opinion at 21. Review is not merited. RAP 13.4(b).

5. Division II Correctly Affirmed the Trial Court's Denial of Ryan's Motion to Subpoena Defendants' Medical Experts to Trial.

The doctors Ryan sought to depose were Defendants CR 35 examining experts. However, once the pretrial orders limited the only issue at trial to plaintiff's general damages from December 12, 2002 to March 31, 2003, Defendants elected not to call the experts at trial.

Ryan also admitted that her sole purpose in seeking the depositions was to re-litigate prior orders granting partial summary judgment. Now she argues at length about her "constitutional right" to "confront the witnesses against her" under the Sixth Amendment and the Fourteenth Amendment. Petition, p. 27. This argument is ridiculous and unsupported.

As set forth by Division II, the partial summary judgment ruling was proper, "so the trial court was correct to conclude that any testimony about Ryan's condition at the time of the CR 35 examination would have been outside the scope of issues on trial. The jury did not hear any testimony or receive any evidence about the CR 35 examination, so impeaching the experts about the exam would not have yielded any probative evidence regarding any issue that was on trial." Opinion, p. 21. Division II properly held that the trial court did not err by denying Ryan's motion to subpoena Timmerman's medical experts because their testimony was not relevant to the issue on trial. Review of this decision is not merited. RAP 13.4(b).

IV. CONCLUSION

Division II's thoughtful opinion applied this Court's precedent and correctly affirmed each of the Superior Court's orders on appeal. Defendants respectfully request that this Court DENY Ryan's Petition for Review. RAP 13.4(b).

Certificate of Compliance pursuant to RAP 18.17(b): I certify this Brief of Respondents contains 3,260 words.